
 

Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB  

www.broxtowe.gov.uk    

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Tuesday, 11 January 2022 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
A meeting of the Leisure and Health Committee will be held on Wednesday, 19 January 
2022 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston NG9 1AB, 
commencing at 7.00 pm. 
 
Should you require advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please 
contact the Monitoring Officer at your earliest convenience. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Chief Executive 
 
To Councillors: B C Carr (Chair) 

D Bagshaw (Vice-Chair) 
S A Bagshaw 
M Brown 
M J Crow 
T A Cullen 
S Dannheimer 

S Easom 
S Kerry 
H G Khaled MBE 
H Land 
R D MacRae 
J P T Parker 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1.   APOLOGIES 

 
 

 To receive apologies and to be notified of the attendance of 
substitutes. 
 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature 
of any disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest in 
any item on the agenda. 
 
 

 

3.   MINUTES 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

 The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the 
minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2021. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

4.   BUSINESS PLANS AND FINANCIAL ESTIMATES 2022/23 
- 2024/25 
 

(Pages 7 - 48) 

 To consider proposals for business plans, detailed revenue 
budget estimates for 2022/23 and capital programme for 
2022/23 to 2024/25 in respect of the Council’s priority areas.  
 
 

 

5.   DEMENTIA ACTION PLAN 
 

(Pages 49 - 56) 

 To advise Committee of the new Dementia Action Plan. 
 
 

 

6.   CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ACTION PLAN 
 

(Pages 57 - 66) 

 To advise the Committee of the draft Children and Young 
People Action Plan. 
 
 

 

7.   FOOD CLUBS UPDATE 
 

(Pages 67 - 70) 

 To advise the Committee on the progress of the 
development of three Food Clubs in the Borough. 
 
 

 

8.   PLAY DAYS 2022 
 

(Pages 71 - 72) 

 To provide the Leisure and Health Committee with an 
update regarding the play day options as requested. 
 
 

 

 
 



LEISURE AND HEALTH COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor D Bagshaw, Vice Chair in the Chair 
 

Councillors: M Brown 
B C Carr (Substitute) 
S J Carr (Substitute) 
M J Crow 
T A Cullen 
S Dannheimer 
S Easom 
E Kerry (Substitute) 
S Kerry 
H Land 
R D MacRae 
J P T Parker 
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors I L Tyler, S A Bagshaw and 
H G Khaled MBE. 

 
 

22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor S Easom declared a non-pecuniary interest as he was a Director on the 
Liberty Leisure board agenda items 4 and 11, minute numbers 24 and 27 refers.  
Councillor R D MacRae declared an interest in agenda 4 as he was on the Hemlock 
Happening Committee group. Minute number 24 refers and he also declared an 
interest in agenda item 6 as he had been involved in the delivering the food projects. 
Minute item 26 refers. 
 
 

23 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2021 were confirmed and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
 

24 EVENT OPTIONS APPRAISAL - CULTURAL SERVICES  
 
The Committee considered the proposed options for the delivery of events for the year 
2022-23. 
 
Liberty Leisure Limited had adopted the Council’s Broxtowe Events Strategy’, 2015 
and beyond as agreed in the Management Agreement between Local Authority 
Trading Company and the Council. The strategy influenced the annual programme of 
events delivered by the company from 2017-21.  
 
Suggestions for the events programme for 2022-23 included Hemlock Happening, 
Play days, Christmas Lights Switch on, Beeston Beach, Cinema, 1940’s event, D H 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



Lawrence Festival, Kimberley Christmas Lights and Eastwood Fireworks with three 
options to deliver the programme. 
 
The appendix of the report highlighted in a table the different options available 
between Option A, B and C and associated costs.  It was noted that staffing and event 
infrastructure costs increased year on year and were expected to increase further in 
2022. This meant the Company would be able to deliver less event services within the 
same budget.  
 

 Option A Increased the number of Play Days and financial costs would be 
contained within the Liberty Leisure Ltd events budget requiring no further 
management fee to the Company.  

 Option B Increased staffing levels and would provide a similar programme to 
2019-20 along with a Council funded Events Officer Post and the cost adding to 
the management fee for 2022-23 

 Option C would increase Planning, delivery and budget management of Civic 
events to be undertaken by Liberty Leisure Events including Remembrance 
Parade, Mayors Ball and Freedom Parade and would have required £60,934 in 
addition to the management fee to cover an additional 1.5 full time equivalent 
Event Officer post and increased base budget incorporating existing Council 
events.  

 
Discussions ensued regarding the events chosen, location and lack of consultation. 
Members would have liked to have had a greater input into the events programme. An 
explanation on Play days and Cinema events was provided.  

 
RESOLVED that Option C in appendix 1 that will require £60,934 in 

addition to the management fee to cover additional 1.5 FTE event officers posts 
and increased base budget incorporating existing council events be approved. 
 

RECOMMENDED to the Council that the chosen option carries a ring-
fenced event delivery budget, separate to the operational and staffing budgets 
of the local authority trading company.  
 
 

25 TOBACCO CONTROL ACTION PLAN 2021-23  
 
Members were advised of updates to the Tobacco Control Action Plan. 
 
In December 2014, Broxtowe Borough Council signed up to the Nottinghamshire 
County and Nottingham City Declaration on Tobacco Control.  
 
According to the National Health Service, smoking was one of the biggest causes of 
death and illness in the UK.  Smoking increases the risk of developing more than 50 
serious health conditions. As part of the Council’s on-going commitment to reducing 
the health impacts of tobacco use, a tobacco Control Action Plan had been produced. 
 
A query was raised if the vape bus and youth clubs could be implemented into the 
Action Plan to support stopping. This was agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that the Tobacco Control Action Plan 2021-23 with the 
addition of the Vape bus and Youth Clubs to be added to the Action Plan be 
approved.  

Page 4



 
26 FOOD CLUBS UPDATE  

 
Members were updated on the progress of the development of three Food Clubs in 
the Borough. 
 
Nottinghamshire County Council was currently working with Family Action to deliver 
30 Food Clubs across Nottinghamshire by the end of the financial year. 
 
 In Broxtowe the plan was for three Food Clubs to be located at Eastwood Children’s 
Centre, Beeston North Children’s Centre and Chilwell Children’s Centre. Eastwood 
had been opened since 22 July with Beeston opened from 9 November. Chilwell Food 
Club was planned for January 2022. However, this may be delayed due to capacity 
issues at the Centre.  
 
 

27 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT - REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN PROGRESS - 
LIBERTY LEISURE LIMITED  
 
Committee noted the progress against outcome targets identifies in the Liberty Leisure 
Limited Business Plan for 2021-2024, linked to Corporate Plan Priorities and 
objectives, and was provided with an update as the latest key performance indicators 
therein.  
 
 

28 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT - REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN PROGRESS - 
HEALTH  
 
Committee noted the progress against outcome targets identified in the Health 
Business Plan, linked to Corporate Plan priorities and objectives, and was provided an 
update as to the latest key performance indicators therein. 
 
A vote of thanks was given to Councillor J C Patrick for all her work helping the 
community with Dementia. Councillor J C Patrick had stood down from her role at the 
Memory Café.  
 
 

29 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members considered the work programme and agreed to add a report on Play Days to 
the next meeting. 
 

RESOLVED that the work programme, with the additional item of Play 
Days be approved.  
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 
 

 
 

Joint Report of the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, the Executive 
Director and the Managing Director, Liberty Leisure Limited 
 

BUSINESS PLANS AND FINANCIAL ESTIMATES 2022/23 - 2024/25 
 

1. Purpose of report 
 

To consider proposals for business plans, detailed revenue budget estimates for 
2022/23 and capital programme for 2022/23 to 2024/25 in respect of the 
Council’s priority areas. 

 

2.   Detail 
 

As part of the Council’s performance management framework, the business and 
financial plans for the five corporate priority areas identified within the Corporate 
Plan are brought together in one report so that the linkages between service 
priorities, spending proposals and targets are clear.  
 

Under the Constitution, financial and business planning is reported to the 
Committee which has primary responsibility for oversight of the relevant 
corporate priority areas and related services, in this case Leisure and Health.  An 
extract of the proposed Health Business Plan is provided in appendix 1b.  The 
extract includes relevant critical success indicators (CSI), key performance 
indicators (KPI) and key tasks and priorities for improvement (actions) for 
approval by Members. It is also part of the remit of the Committee to provide 
strategic direction to any delivery body established by the Council to fulfil the 
purposes over which the Committee has responsibility. To meet this requirement, 
an extract of the Liberty Leisure Business Plan (appendix 1c) is also presented. 
 

The revenue and capital budget proposals for the corporate priority and relevant 
service areas are provided in appendices 2a to 2b. 
 

Following consideration by the respective Committees, a summary of the 
estimates, including any changes recommended, will be presented to the 
Finance and Resources Committee on 10 February 2022 for consideration and 
recommendation to Full Council on 2 March 2022. 

 

Recommendations 
 

1.  The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the Health Business Plan be 
approved and to NOTE the Liberty Leisure Limited Business Plan. 

 

2. The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that the Finance and Resources 
Committee recommends to Council that the following be approved: 

  a) The detailed revenue budget estimates for 2022/23 (base) including 
any revenue development submissions. 

  b) The capital programme for 2022/23 to 2024/25.   

Background papers – Nil 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 
 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 
Introduction 
 
The Council’s business and financial planning framework is one of identifying key 
service and spending pressures and prioritising resources accordingly, taking into 
account national and local priorities. 
 
The targeted outcomes from these key issues and the anticipated impact on service 
performance are set out in business plans. These plans are combined with financial 
information, including proposals for reducing business costs and increasing income, 
to form the Business Plans for each priority area.  
 
This report considers the detail in respect of the Business Plan covering the priority 
areas of Leisure and Health.  The financial consequences of the business plan, 
together with the expenditure and income from maintaining existing services, are set 
out in the revenue budget proposals, the capital programme and the proposed fees 
and charges which follow the plan. 
 
Within the Health Business Plan there are some key tasks which can be met from 
existing resources or which relate to policy preparation.  These are not included in the 
key spending proposals detailed in the appendices. Any planned activities which will 
have a financial implication either by increasing costs or reducing income are identified 
accordingly in the budget papers. 
 
In the Liberty Leisure Limited Business Plan, the financial estimates were developed 
within a five-year business plan drawn up as part of the business case for the 
establishment of the company.  The anticipated spend has been incorporated into the 
revenue budgets for 2022/23 as a fixed fee (referred to as a Third Party Payment).  
Any variation against the fee paid for 2022/23 at the financial year end will result in a 
budget adjustment to the following year’s proposals.  Costs relating to the premises 
provided to the company for the delivery of leisure services are met by the Council 
which retains ownership of the assets.  Costs incurred in providing support services to 
the company are recovered as income to the Council. 
 
There are several key tasks where it is not appropriate to make financial provision at 
this stage. These include areas that are subject to external funding bids, partnership 
arrangements or where insufficient information exists at the present time. In addition, 
there are a number of capital schemes within the programme which are deemed to be 
‘awaiting funding’ pending receipt of the necessary resources to complete them.  
These schemes will be brought forward for approval once a potential funding source 
has been identified. 
  
All of these items will be the subject of further reports throughout 2022/23 as further 
information and resources become available, thus ensuring that the service and 
financial planning framework is a fluid process.  
  

Page 8



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 
 

 
 

 
Business Planning 
 
As part of the Council’s performance management framework, it is the responsibility 
of each Committee to consider its business plans prior to recommendations being 
made to Council.  The purpose of the plans is twofold.  Firstly, they establish the 
linkage between the Council’s high-level objectives and the strategies and aims of the 
respective services, and secondly, they outline the services’ proposals for meeting 
those aims and objectives. 
 
This report deals with the Health Business Plan and associated budget covering this 
priority area.  The Liberty Leisure Business Plan which supports the aims of the 
Council through the proposed delivery of leisure services. The Council’s corporate 
objectives and aims, as included in the Corporate Plan, are shown at appendix 1a to 
provide the framework for consideration of the plans.  
 
Financial Background 
 
The revenue and capital budget proposals for the corporate priority are shown in 
appendices 2a to 2b. 
 
The revenue budgets show the 2021/22 revised estimate as of December 2021 and 
the 2022/23 base estimate for the areas encompassed by the relevant business plans. 
The base estimate figures generally reflect the same level of service as in the current 
year with a few exceptions.  
 
The following are included in the 2022/23 base figures in this report: 

a) Allowance for certain inflationary pressures including the pay award and cost of 
utilities. These allowances are guided by the best indications available at the 
time. 

b) Anticipated additional income within the General Fund and the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) arising from the review of fees and charges. 

c) The revenue effects of the 2022-25 capital programme including the cost of any 
new borrowing to support the capital programme. 

d) Any revenue developments. 
 
The classification of expenditure shown in the revenue estimates is based on the 
CIPFA Standard Accounting Classification, which shows the following types of 
expenditure charged to each heading: 
 

 Employee Expenses – salaries and wages; employer’s national insurance and 
pensions contributions 

 Premises Related Expenses – repairs, alterations and maintenance of 
buildings, fixed plant and grounds; energy costs; rents; national non-domestic 
rates; water charges; fixtures and fittings; cleaning and domestic supplies. 

Page 9



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 
 

 
 

 Transport Related Expenses – direct transport costs; recharge of pooled 
transport costs; travelling allowances 

 Supplies and Services – equipment, furniture and materials; clothing, uniforms 
and laundry; printing, stationery and general; office expenses; postages; 
telephones; insurances; grants and subscriptions; miscellaneous expenses 

 Third Party Payments – other local authorities; private contractors; charges 
from trading services 

 Transfer Payments – Housing and Council Tax Benefits 

 Central, Departmental and Technical Support Services - administrative 
buildings expenses; central departmental support; departmental administration 

 Capital Financing Costs – operating lease charges; asset register charges

Page 10



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

APPENDIX 1A 
 

FRAMEWORK FOR BUSINESS PLANNING  
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan is subject to annual review to ensure that it continues to 
reflect the aims and objectives of the Council. 
 
Vision 
 
The Council’s Vision for Broxtowe is “greener, safer, healthier Broxtowe, where 
everyone prospers”. 
 
Priorities 
 
The Council’s updated priorities have been updated have been developed within the 
context of national, regional and countywide plans and priorities with the aim being to 
align these with our own aspirations wherever possible. 
 
The Council’s priorities are Housing, Business Growth, Environment, Health and, 
Community Safety. 
 
Underpinning the above and all of the Council’s work is a series of values which the 
Council has adopted, namely:  
 

Going the extra mile: a strong, caring focus on the needs of communities 

Ready for change: innovation and readiness for change 

Employees: valuing our employees and enabling the active involvement of everyone 

Always improving: continuous improvement and delivering value for money 

Transparent: integrity and professional competence. 

 
Objectives 
 
Each priority area is underpinned by its strategic objectives.  Each strategic objective 
has targeted outcomes against which progress can be monitored. 
 
The priorities and objectives for Health are ‘People in Broxtowe enjoy longer, active 
and healthy lives’: 
 

 Promote active and healthy lifestyles in every area of Broxtowe 

 Come up with plans to renew our leisure facilities in Broxtowe Borough Council 

 Support people to live well with dementia and support those who are lonely or 
have mental health problems. 

 

Page 11



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

APPENDIX 1B 
 

HEALTH BUSINESS PLAN 2022–2025 
 
Introduction 
 
An extract of the proposed Health Business Plan is provided below includes the 
relevant critical success indicators (CSI), key performance indicators (KPI) and the 
key tasks and priorities for improvement (actions) that are required to be approved by 
this Committee. 
 
In an attempt to streamline the reporting process, the extract does not include the 
regular information and data relating to: 
 

 published strategy and policy documents supporting the delivery of priorities 
and objectives;  

 service level objectives;  

 contextual baseline service data;  

 management performance indicators (MPI); and  

 summary of key risks. 
 
This information will be added to the extract below and included in the full Business 
Plan that will be published on the Council’s website in advance of the financial year. 
 
Background 
 
The Business Plan details the projects and activity undertaken in support of the 
Corporate Plan priority of Health. 
 

The Corporate Plan prioritises local community needs and resources are directed 
toward the things they think are most important.  These needs are aligned with other 
local, regional and national plans to ensure the ambitions set out in the Corporate Plan 
are realistic and achievable. 
 

The Business Plan covers a three-year period but will be revised and updated 
annually.  Detailed monitoring of progress against key tasks and outcome measures 
is undertaken quarterly by this Committee.  The Policy and Performance Committee 
also receives a high level report of progress against Corporate Plan priorities on a 
quarterly basis.  
 
Business Plan – Performance Indicators and Key Tasks for Improvement 
 
The critical success indicators (CSI), key performance indicators (KPI) and the key 
tasks and priorities for improvement (actions) are considered in detail below for 
approval. 

Page 12



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

MEASURES OF PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE DATA (Extract) 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS INDICATORS (CSI) 
 

Priority leaders work corporately to define the outcome objective for each priority area and have identified outcome indicator(s) which will 
be Critical Success Indicators.  There will be a maximum of two CSI for each corporate priority. 
 

Indicator Description  
(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Future 
Years 

Indicator Owner and Comments 
(incl. benchmarking) 

Promote healthy and active life styles in every area of Broxtowe (He1) 

Inactive Adults in Broxtowe 
Borough % (LLLocal_G09) 

18.4%* 

 

19.5%** 

 

25.3% 

 

20% 20% 20% Data from the annual Sport 
England ‘Active Lives Survey’ 

* Reported October 2019 

** Reported October 2020 

Air Quality – number of NO2 

diffusion tube samples with annual 
mean reading at or below 40 
micrograms m-3 (ComS_090) 

- 40 
(100%) 

40 
(100%) 

40 
(100%) 

45 
(100%) 

45 
(100%) 

Chief Environmental Health Officer 

Annual figure. Further tubes added 
in January 2022. 

Develop a renewal strategy for plans to renew our leisure facilities in Broxtowe Borough Council (He2) 

Linked to Key Tasks - - - - - - This is a key task 

Support people to live well with dementia and support those who are lonely or who have mental health problems (He3) 

Dementia friends trained 
(ComS_091) 

74 90 0 80 90 90 Chief Communities Officer 

Training of Dementia Friends in 
2020/21 was suspended due to 
COVID-19. Officer deployed to 
other duties during the pandemic.  

Work is underway to enable staff 
and members to train as dementia 
friends through Broxtowe Learning 
Zone. 

P
age 13



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator Description  
(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Future 
Years 

Indicator Owner and Comments 
(incl. benchmarking) 

Personal wellbeing score (Life 
Satisfaction)  for the borough (out 
of 10) from Office of National 
Statistics (ComS_092) 

7.8 7.9 7.3 7.5 7.9 8.1 Chief Communities Officer 

This data measures how satisfied 
people are with their life overall 
where “0” is not at all satisfied and 
“10” is completely satisfied.  

A drop in wellbeing was seen 
during the pandemic.  

 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Priority leaders identify two sets of performance indicators namely; Key Performance Indicators (KPI) for reporting to GMT and Members; 
and Management Performance Indicators (MPI) for use in business planning and performance monitoring at a service level.  
 

Indicator Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Future 
Years 

Indicator Owner and Comments 

(incl. benchmarking) 

Food - Respond to specific 
complaints about practices 
procedures and conditions which 
may prejudice health in the short 
term within 1 working day of receipt, 
and non-urgent complaints/ 
requests for advise within 5 working 
days of receipt. 

(ComS_041 – number )  
(ComS_050 – (%) 

204 

 

97% 

172 

 

97% 

377 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

Chief Environmental Health Officer  

Selection of 1, 3 and 5 days 
responses depending on risk to 
public health. Figures not set as a 
target, just response rate.  

Cases of COVID-19 linked to 
premises/work activities were 
recorded separately. 

P
age 14



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Future 
Years 

Indicator Owner and Comments 

(incl. benchmarking) 

Infectious Disease - Respond to 
notifications within 1 working day 
and requests for advice and 
information as soon as practicable 
within 5 working days of receipt.  

(ComS_042 – number) and 
(ComS_051 – (%) 

32 

 

91% 

28 

 

100% 

17 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

- 

 

100% 

Chief Environmental Health Officer  

Investigated in relation to public 
health significance.  Approach to 
responses aligned within the whole 
county. 

Figures not set as a target, just 
response rate. 

Cases of COVID-19 linked to 
premises/work activities were 
recorded separately. 

Air Quality - Inspect authorised/ 
permitted polluting processes due 
for inspection in accordance with a 
pre-planned programme based on 
risk (ComS_055) 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Chief Environmental Health Officer  

In line with DEFRA guidance 
inspections and review were 
undertaken by written and remote 
means rather than on-site 
inspections. On-site inspections will 
likely be re-instated in 2021-2022 

 
KEY TASKS AND PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT 2021/23 – 2023/24 INCLUDING COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 
 

Action 

(Pentana Code) Targeted Outcome 
Partnership / 

Procurement Arrangement 
Officers Responsible 

/ Target Date 
Budget Implications / Efficiencies / 

Other comments 

Monitor and update 
Health and Older 
People Partnership 
Action Plan  

COMS2124_04) 

Improvement in the health 
and wellbeing (including 
mental health) of people in 
the borough, particularly 
older people 

Agencies working as part of 
Broxtowe Partnership 

Communities Officer 
(Health) 

April 2023 

Plan within existing resources/budgets 

Provision of free meeting rooms for 
smoking cessation clinics and BWP  

The plan draws in around £3,500 of 
grants/in kind contributions from partners 

P
age 15



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

Action 

(Pentana Code) Targeted Outcome 
Partnership / 

Procurement Arrangement 
Officers Responsible 

/ Target Date 
Budget Implications / Efficiencies / 

Other comments 

Monitor and update 
Dementia Partnership 
Action Plan 

(COMS2225_01) 

Improved awareness of 
issues surrounding dementia 
and better access to support 
for those with dementia and 
their carers / families 

County Council / Voluntary 
Sector / Health 

Communities Officer 
(Health) 

March 2024 

Within existing resources and budgets 

Monitor and update 
Child Poverty Action 
Plan (COMS2124_06) 

Reduction of child poverty 
levels in the borough   

Broxtowe BC Departments Communities Officer 
(Children & Young 
People) 

September 2022 

Within existing departmental resources 
and budgets 

Monitor and update 
Children and Young 
Persons Partnership 
Action Plan 

(COMS2225_02) 

Improvement in the wellbeing 
of people in the borough, 
particularly children and 
young people 

Agencies working as part of 
Broxtowe Partnership 

Communities Officer 
(Children &Young 
People) 

March 2024 

Within existing resources and budgets 

The plan draws in around £4,000 in in 
kind contributions from partners 

Monitor and Update 
Mental Health Action 
Plan (COMS2124_08) 

Improvements in the Mental 
Health and wellbeing of 
people  

In the Borough.  

Agencies working as part of 
Broxtowe Partnership 

Communities Officer 
(Health) 

March 2024 

Within existing resources and budgets 

Deliver Healthy 
Exercise and Food 
programmes during 
school holidays  

(COMS2225_03) 

Ensuring children and young 
people eligible for free school 
meals are fed nutritional hot 
meals and have access to 
physical and creative 
activities during school 
holidays  

Transform Training 

Eastwood Football Club 

Premier 

Pulp Friction  

YMCA  

Chief Communities 
Officer Communities 
Officer (Children 
&Young People) 

Ongoing until further 
notice 

10% of grant spend can be claimed as 
admin fee  

P
age 16



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

Action 

(Pentana Code) Targeted Outcome 
Partnership / 

Procurement Arrangement 
Officers Responsible 

/ Target Date 
Budget Implications / Efficiencies / 

Other comments 

Work with Liberty 
Leisure Limited to 
develop and 
implement a Leisure 
Facility Strategy 

(BBC2022b) 

Develop a financial model for 
identified new facilities  

To have a strategy that 
details maintaining the 
provision of three leisure 
facilities with a costed 
timetable to replace two of 
the existing facilities  

Leisure Consultants  

Liberty Leisure Ltd  

BBC Deputy Chief 
Executive  

Managing Director 

Budget implications will be determined on 
completion of the Leisure Facilities 
strategy 

Implement a new 
exercise referral 
scheme if pre planning 
and partnership 
feedback supports its 
feasibility 

(LL2023_G08) 

Provide a sustainable 
supported referral 
opportunity for people with 
medical needs who will 
benefit from exercise  

Primary Care Network (PCN) 

Social Prescribers  

Public Health –ABL 

Community Health / Physio 
workers 

PICS respiratory services 

Managing Director 

Start April 2022 

End March 2024 

Sustainable referral scheme provided by 
Liberty Leisure Limited at zero net cost.  

 
  

P
age 17



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

 

LINK KEY TASKS AND PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT TO THE FINANCIAL BUDGETS  
 

Priority leaders should ensure that key tasks and priorities (including commercial activities) that have a financial implication are included in the 
analysis below.  

 

Revenue and Capital Budget Implications/Efficiencies Generated 
Pentana 
Action  
Code 

2022/23 
Budget 

£ 

2023/24 
Budget 

£ 

2024/25 
Budget 

£ 

Budget Implications     

None  0 0 0 

Efficiencies Generated     

Monitor and update Health and Older People Partnership Action Plan 
(partner contributions and grants) 

COMS2124_04 (3,500) (0) (0) 

Monitor and update Children and Young Persons Partnership Action Plan 
(partner contributions) 

COMS2225_02 (4,000) (0) (0) 

New business/increased income     

None  0 0 0 

Net Change in Revenue Budgets Note 0 0 0 

 
Note: External partner contributions to be confirmed.  

P
age 18



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

APPENDIX 1C 
 

LIBERTY LEISURE BUSINESS PLAN 2022–2025 
 
Introduction 
 
The proposed Liberty Leisure Business Plan is provided below and includes: 
 

 Performance Indicators (PIs) 

 Key tasks and priorities for improvement (actions) that are required to be 
approved by  

 Planning for future business actions 

 Actions to support Broxtowe Borough Council 

 Links to financial budgets for key tasks  

 Forecast income and expenditure summary for 2023/24  

 Summary of key risks 
 
 
Background 
 
The Liberty Leisure Limited Business Plan ensures that the company’s projects and 
performance develop the business objectives of the company while contributing 
towards the priorities of Broxtowe Borough Council.  
 
The plan outlines the project priorities that Liberty Leisure Limited will implement to 
develop the company so it can continue to exceed the business objectives agreed with 
the Council in the Service Agreement and the original five-year Business Plan. 
 
The priority of the company is to deliver an efficient service for the Council while 
continuing to make contributions to the Council’s Corporate Plan priority of Health. The 
company delivers a programme of opportunities to have a positive impact on the health 
of local people, to do this Liberty Leisure Limited is guided by the Service Agreement 
with the Council and its own operational strategies.  These documents align the work 
of Liberty Leisure Limited with other local, regional and national plans to ensure the 
company’s work is of a high quality and contributes to wider objectives. 
 
The business plan covers a three-year period but will be revised and updated annually. 
A suite of milestones and Key Performance Indicators (KPI) will be used to monitor 
progress against key tasks and targets.  
 
  

Page 19



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Liberty Leisure Limited’s values that contribute to the Councils vision are: 
 

 Innovation – Constantly evolving our offering  

 Care – Caring for our community  

 Employees – recognising our staff and ensuring a happy workforce for all  

 Integrity – always acting with integrity 

 Value – Delivering value for all 

 Fun – Vibrant and diverse leisure, culture and events that enrich lives 
 
Liberty Leisure Limited specifically contributes to the Council’s Corporate Plan by: 
 

 Encouraging active and healthy lifestyles in every area of the Borough 

 Supporting the council to produce and deliver its Leisure Facility Strategy 
 
Business Plan – Performance Indicators and Key Tasks for Improvement 
 
The performance indicators (PIs) and the key tasks and priorities for improvement 
(actions) are considered in detail below for this committee to note. The Liberty Leisure 
Limited Business Plan 2023/25 has been reviewed by the Liberty Leisure Limited 
Board.

Page 20



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

LIBERTY LEISURE LIMITED 
BUSINESS PLAN 2022-2025 

 
The Liberty Leisure Limited Business Plan ensures that the company’s projects and performance develop the business objectives of the 
company while contributing towards the priorities of Broxtowe Borough Council.  
 
This plan outlines the project priorities that Liberty Leisure Limited will implement to develop the company so it can continue to exceed 
the business objectives agreed with Broxtowe Borough Council. 
 
The priority of the company is to deliver an efficient service for Broxtowe Borough Council while continuing to make contributions to the 
Council’s Corporate Plan priority of Health. The company delivers a programme of opportunities to have a positive impact on the health 
of local people, to do this Liberty Leisure Limited is guided by the Service Agreement with the Council.  
 
The business plan focuses on the delivery of actions for the coming financial year. A suite of milestones and Key Performance Indicators 
(KPI) will be used to monitor progress against key tasks and targets. 
 

The Council’s Vision for Broxtowe is ‘a greener, safer, healthier Broxtowe where everyone prospers’. 
 
Liberty Leisure Limited’s values that contribute to the Councils vision are: 
 

 Innovation – Constantly evolving our offering  

 Care – Caring for our community  

 Employees – recognising our staff and ensuring a happy workforce for all  

 Integrity – always acting with integrity 

 Value – Delivering value for all 

 Fun – Vibrant and diverse leisure, culture and events that enrich lives 
 
Liberty Leisure Limited specifically contributes to Broxtowe’s Corporate Plan by: 

 Encouraging active and healthy lifestyles in every area of the Borough 

 Supporting the council to produce and deliver its Leisure Facility Strategy 
 

P
age 21



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

1. PUBLISHED STRATEGY AND POLICY DOCUMENTS SUPPORTING THE DELIVERY OF PRIORITIES AND OBJECTIVES 
 

Strategy/Policy Document  Purpose of Document Renewal Date Responsible 
Officer/Contact 

Broxtowe Leisure Facilities 
Strategy  

The future of leisure facilities within the Borough of Broxtowe March 2021 Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Broxtowe Borough Council 
Corporate Plan 

The Council's overarching plan for its priorities, targets and 
objectives.  The plan sets out priorities to achieve the vision to 
make “Broxtowe a great place where people enjoy living, working 
and spending leisure time” with focus on the priorities of Housing, 
Business Growth, Community Safety, Health and Environment. 

April 2024 Chief Executive 

Broxtowe Events Strategy 2015 
and Beyond 

To be changed to Cultural Services 
Plan to encompass both events 
and museum  

Events strategy document providing a framework for delivering 
events 

2022- March 
2024 

Managing 
Director 

Get Active Strategy  

(Previously Sports Strategy) 

Providing the opportunity, motivation and support to enable people 
to be more active than ever before 

March 2022, to 
be updated Sept 
2022 

Managing 
Director 

Joint Use Agreement Provides legal framework for the management of the joint-use 
facilities in partnership with Notts County Council and school 
governing bodies 

Agreement with 
Chilwell School 
subject to 2 years 
notice  

Managing 
Director/Deputy 
Chief Executive  

Service Level Agreement  Provides an operating agreement with EMET / Kimberley School  Expected 
agreement to be 
from Sept 2022 
for 3 years 

Managing 
Director/Deputy 
Chief Executive  

P
age 22



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

 

2. LIBERTY LEISURE LTD VISION AND VALUE 
 
Promote active and healthy lifestyles in every area of Broxtowe (He1) 
 

Service Areas covered  
by this Plan 

Service Objectives 

Vision Leisure, Culture and Events at the heart of our community 

Mission To earn the lifelong loyalty of our customers through delivering first class leisure, culture and event services 

Values  INNOVATION – constantly evolving our offering 

 CARE – caring for our community 

 INTEGRITY – always acting with integrity 

 SAFETY – provide safe and secure facilities and events 

 VALUE FOR MONEY – delivering value for all 

 EMPLOYEES – recognising our staff and ensuring a happy workplace for all 

 FUN – vibrant and diverse leisure, culture and events that enrich lives 

Operational Areas  Bramcote Leisure Centre; Kimberley Leisure Centre; Chilwell Olympia 

 Get Active 

 Events 

 D.H. Lawrence Birthplace Museum 

 Business Development  

  

P
age 23



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

3. MEASURES OF PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE DATA 
 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

Indicator  
Description 

(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2017/18 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Target 
2023/24 

Indicator Owner  
and Comments  

(incl. benchmarking) 

Total Attendances 
for Liberty Leisure 
Limited 
LLLocal_G02 

1,709,356 1,743,511 1,602,979 237,626 1,058m 887,100 930,000 

 

From March 2020 
there has been a 
significant fall in 
attendances at the 
leisure sites due to:  

1. COVID-19 
Pandemic  

2. Loss of facilities 
and school use at 
Kimberley LC  

3. Daytime closure of 
Chilwell Olympia 

The way attendances 
are calculated has 
been reviewed 
removing estimated 
data such as daytime 
school attendance 

Leisure Centres 
LLLocal_G11 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

237,626 1,047,795 850,000 890,000  

Museum 

LLLocal_H01 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

0 1,265 4,500 5,500  

P
age 24



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator  
Description 

(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2017/18 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Target 
2023/24 

Indicator Owner  
and Comments  

(incl. benchmarking) 

Events 
LLLocal_E08 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

0 8,940 27,500 27,500 2023/24 target 
assumes that 
additional ring fenced 
events funding agreed 
for 2022/23 continues 

Get Active 
LLLocal_S01 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

0 0 5,100 7,000  

Total number of 
members (fitness 
and swim school) 
LLLocal_G12 

7,470 8,040 8,175 1,410 6,080 7,000 7,700 Business Manager 

6,365 is the November 
DD collection number. 
2022/23 forecast is 
based on the 
November collection + 
10% growth. A 10% 
increase is also 
assumed for 2023/24.  

Total Number of 
Annual Direct Debits 
Collected 
LLLocal_G06 

89,864 96,454 98,110 16,923 73,000 83,590 90,000 Fitness 43,545 direct 
debits for the year 
2022/23 

Swim 40,045 direct 
debits for the year 
2022/23 

Percentage of direct 
debits collected 
LLLocal_G13 

98.3% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 98.3% 98.4% 98.4% Business Manager 

P
age 25



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator  
Description 

(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2017/18 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Target 
2023/24 

Indicator Owner  
and Comments  

(incl. benchmarking) 

Total Income 
(excluding 
management fee) 
LLLocal_G05 

£3.423m* £3.574m £3.638m £3.866m £2.755m £3.073m £3.125m Managing Director 

Operating 
Expenditure 
(including central 
charges) 
LLLocal_G04 

£4.396m £4.236m £4,593m £4.735m £3.830m £3.915 £3.875m Managing Director 

Assumes that an 
agreement for the 
delivery of leisure at 
Kimberley Leisure 
Centre is agreed and 
implemented in 
August 2022  

Excludes capital 
depreciation and 
pension back pay 
adjustments  

P
age 26



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator  
Description 

(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2017/18 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Target 
2023/24 

Indicator Owner  
and Comments  

(incl. benchmarking) 

Management Fee 
from the Council to 
Liberty Leisure Ltd 
LLData_ 
G05 

£1.160m £1.030m £995,000 £850k £845,000 

Events 

£130k 

 

Museum 

£98k 

Leisure 
Centres 

£557k 

Get Active 

£60k 

£845,000 

Events 

£229k* 

 

Museum 

£177k 

Leisure 
Centres 

£374k 

Get Active 

£106k 

 

*(inc £40,900 

ring fenced 
additional 

funds) 

£815,000 

Events 

£235k** 

 

Museum  

£175k 

Leisure 
Centres 

£340k 

Get Active 

£106k 

 

**(inc £40,900 

ring fenced 
additional 

funds) 

Final comments to 
follow once final 
budget approved 

The management fee 
for 2022/23 is made of 
£845k for the entire 
service with an 
additional ring fenced 
amount of £40,900 
approved by Leisure 
and Health committee 
on 24 November 2021 
for additional events  

Subsidy per visit all 
service areas 
LLLocal_G07 

58.1 pence 38.0 pence 57.8 pence 49.7 pence 86.0 pence 99.0 pence 92.0 pence Managing Director 

Calculation based on 
Management fee + 
additional events 
funding divided by 
forecast attendances 

Subsidy per visit -
Leisure Centres 
LLLocal_G14 

No 

comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

53.0 pence 44.0 pence 38.0 pence Managing Director 

P
age 27



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Indicator  
Description 

(Pentana Code) 

Achieved 
2017/18 

Achieved 
2018/19 

Achieved 
2019/20 

Achieved 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

Target 
2022/23 

Target 
2023/24 

Indicator Owner  
and Comments  

(incl. benchmarking) 

Subsidy per visit -
Get Active 
LLLocal_S05 

No 

comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No delivery 
due to 

pandemic 

£20.78 £15.14 Managing Director  

Subsidy per visit -
Events 
LLLocal_E01 

No 

comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

£14.54 £8.32 £8.54 Managing Director 

Subsidy per visit -
Museum  
LLLocal_H02 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

No 
comparative 

data 

£77.47 £44.24 £31.82 Managing Director 

  

P
age 28



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

4. KEY TASKS AND PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT 2021/22 – 2023/24 INCLUDING COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 
 

Priority leaders are asked to consider potential commercial activities in their priority areas when setting the key tasks and priorities for the next 
three years.  In doing so priority leaders should consider: 
 

 In which service areas could new commercial activities be undertaken? 

 How much additional income could be generated from the new commercial activities? 

 Would additional resources (employees, equipment, systems etc.) be needed to undertake the new commercial activities?  If yes, outline 
these with estimates of costs.  

 How will these new commercial activities link into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital Programme, Business Strategy and 
Commercial Strategy?  

 Will the new commercial activities affect existing Revenue and Capital budgets? If yes, then remember to include the net income or costs to 
Section 5 ‘Link Key Tasks and Priorities for Improvement to the Financial Budgets’.  

 Please identify new ‘commercial activities’ in the comments column. 
 

Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ 
Target Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Operate alternative 
leisure provision from 
the existing Kimberley 
Leisure Centre site 

LL2225_K01 (New) 

Continue to provide 
fitness and swim 
facilities for community 
use during the day and 
evenings  

East Midlands 
Education Trust 

Kimberley School  

Broxtowe Borough 
Council  

Managing Director  

 

Start: May 2022 

Review: Nov. 2023 

End: April 2025 

Specific for the Kimberley site. 

Expenditure (excluding oncosts) 

2022-23 = £855k inc 5 months operating with 
existing agreement 

2023-24 = £740k 

Income 

2022-23 = £798k inc 5 months operating with 
existing agreement 

2023-24 = £757k 

Attendances  

2022-23 = 219,300 

Review period to consider an agreed end date or 18 
month contract extension  

P
age 29



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ 
Target Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Grow fitness and swim 
school memberships 
LL2124_G01 

Recover income lost 
during the lockdowns 
by increasing direct 
debit collections from 
fitness and gym school 
membership 

Les Mills  
(Virtual Classes) 

Innovatise 
(App development) 

Gym Sales  
(Membership 
prospecting) 

Primary Care Network 
(Health referral partner) 

Big Wave  
(Performance Analysis) 

Managing Director  

Leisure Centre 
Managers 

 

Business Manager 

April 2021 to 

March 2024 

Total forecast annual DD collection is 79,300. 
This is an increase of 15.3% the forecasted 
68,800 collections for 2021/22 

Average monthly targets for 2022/23 is:  

- fitness 3,375 direct debits collected  
- Swim School 3,233 direct debits collected 

Actions to achieve targets are detailed within 
the Pentana performance management 
software.  

No additional revenue developments are 
required with the business team delivering the 
actions within the 2022/23 budget 

Implement the 
exercise referral 
scheme  
LL2023_G08 

Provide a sustainable 
supported referral 
opportunity for people 
with medical needs 
who will benefit from 
exercise  

Primary Care Network 
(PCN) 

Social Prescribers  

Public Health –ABL 

Community Health / 
Physio workers 

PICS respiratory 
services 

Managing Director 

Get Active Officer 

April 2022 to  
March 2024 

Review September 
2022 for 
performance to date 
and opportunities to 
expand the 
programme 

PCN funded feasibility phase completed. 
Scheme to be delivered from April 2022  

Sustainable referral scheme at zero net cost:  

Additional ongoing expenditure  

2022/23 = £17,780 

2023/24 = £18,200 

To breakeven for 2022/23 the average monthly 
referral sign ups is 19 people for 2022/23 

Opportunities to grow to be reviewed in 
quarterly meetings with the PCN 

  

P
age 30



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ 
Target Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Implement a first aid 
training programme 
LL2023_G02 

Liberty Leisure Limited 
to provide a First Aid 
training programme to 
be sold commercially 

NUCO 

Broxtowe Borough 
Council 

Managing Director 

Kimberley Leisure 
Centre Manager 

Start April 2020 

End March 2023 

Feasibility delivered during 2021/22 within 
existing resources.  

Additional ongoing expenditure  

2022/23 = £35,500 and 2023/24 £36,000 

Breakeven for 2022/23 is £35,600 (27% of the 
capacity) 

On-going income from 2023/24 £66,000 being 
a surplus income of £30,000 (50% of the 
capacity) 

Deliver the Cultural 
Services Plan 2022-25 

LL2225_E01 (New) 

Increase the number of 
local people accessing a 
cultural service 
Merge the staff from the 
community events and 
museum teams to create 
one Cultural Services 
team. 

Broxtowe Borough 
Council 

The D.H. Lawrence 
Society 

Parish Councils  

Hemlock Jubilee 
Committee  

Managing Director  

Cultural Services 
Manager 

April 2022 to  
March 2025 

Significant actions from the Service Plan 
2022/24 will be added to the Pentana 
Performance Management System 

All developments for 2022/23 will be contained 
within the finances detailed in this business 
plan. 

Revenue implications for 2023/24 will be 
reported to the council and Board of Directors  

Procure and 
implement a new 
Leisure Management 
System  
LL2225_G02 (New)  

Improve the customer 
journey at each leisure 
site through a better 
online booking process 

Procurement for new 
system began in Sept 
2021 

Managing Director 
Business Manager 

BBC Procurement 
Officer  

BBC ICT Manager  

Implement 
September 2022 

Existing expenditure £44,600 

New annual expenditure £49,000 

Additional costs are included within the company’s 
finances for 2022/23 and onwards 

Benefits of the new system will bring the opportunity 
to review membership pricing structures, automated 
waiting list management and customer 
communications, streamlined DD admin, increased 
online transactions all which improve customer 
service and operational efficiencies 

  

P
age 31



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

PLANNING FOR FUTURE BUSINESS ACTIONS  
 

Description Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ Target 
Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Review the new staffing 
structure implemented at 
Kimberley Leisure Centre 
LL_FB.2022b (New)  

Review: administrative 
efficiency – centralise 
elements of the work 

Diversify the skills of staff 
and review all job 
descriptions 

Restructure how staff are 
deployed e.g. sales / 
retention 

Ascertain the financial 
savings that could be made 
if a similar staffing model 
was implemented at 
Bramcote Leisure Centre 
and Chilwell Olympia  

Human 
Resources 

 

ICT 

Managing Director  

Site Managers  

 

May 2022 to 
September 2022  

The review will determine the feasibility and 
scale of potential staffing changes within 
Liberty Leisure Ltd.  

Timescales and financial implications will be 
ascertained on the completion of the review 
with any actions that arise from the work to be 
detailed in the 2023/26 Business plan 

Potential benefits include broader job roles to 
address potential changes in the employment 
market, flexible contracts, cross site working, 
improved staffing resilience 

Review Swim Lesson 
provision 
LL_FB.2022c (New) 

To determine the feasibility 
of increasing swim lesson 
choice; e.g. one-ones, 
smaller groups, crash 
course sessions, moving 
learners more quickly 
through the system; 
improve retention 

Big Wave  Managing Director 

Business Manager 
/ Site Managers  

September 2022 to 
December 2022  

Review to consider:  

Bottlenecks / underutilisation at different 
lesson levels  

Alternative pricing options / lesson sizes / one 
to ones / teaching points 

Any recommended changes to be 
implemented during 2023/24 

P
age 32



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Description Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ Target 
Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Explore the feasibility and 
develop a business case 
to increase the opening 
hours of Chilwell Olympia 
to full pre pandemic 
opening 

LL2124_G04 

Increase usage and 
improve the financial 
efficiency of Chilwell 
Olympia 

Reopen the gym and fitness 
class programme at 
Chilwell Olympia to operate 
alongside a daytime 
programme of targeted 
activities 

Development of 7 targeted 
activity sessions totalling 18 
hours for vulnerable people 

Partners to 
deliver targeted 
daytime activity 
include:  

A range of 
Health Services 
e.g. PCN; 
Connect Health; 
ABL; Diabetes; 
Respiratory 
Services 

Chilwell School 

Managing Director 
Leisure Centre 
Managers 

Business Manager 

Start January 2022  

Business case to 
support the decision 
to implement 
additional opening by 
September 2022.  

Implement additional 
opening  from April 
2023 

Business plan to consider :  

1. Number of additional opening hours 
2. Restructure of staffing to support 

reopening  
3. Additional costs incurred 
4. Additional income  
5. Targeted activities are financially 

sustainable and have ongoing partner 
support  
 

A business case will be presented to the 
Board of Directors for consideration before 
implementing further opening hours 

Direct Debit Bureau 
LL_FB.2022d (New)  

Determine the feasibility of 
developing an external 
direct debit custom 

Additional annual revenue 
generated by the business 
to support reducing the 
annual management fee 
required by the company 
from the council 

Payment and 
cash 
management 
provider  

Managing Director 

Business Manager  

 

Business Case to 
the Board of 
Directors October 
2022 

A business case will be presented to the 
Board of Directors for consideration before 
implementing a Direct Debit Bureau will be 
progressed 

Explore the feasibility of 
delivering a Corporate 
Health programme 
LL_FB.2022e (New) 

Deliver ‘pilot’ corporate 
health sessions.  
Determine the feasibility of 
delivery of an ongoing 
Corporate Health 
programme  

Broxtowe 
Borough Council 
Human 
Resources 

Business Officer  

April 2022 to 
December 2023 

Prove a business case to the Board of 
Directors for consideration before 
implementing an ongoing Corporate Health 
provision 

P
age 33



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Description Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers 
Responsible/ Target 
Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Review the existing Get 
Active Strategy to ensure 
relevance following the 
pandemic 
LL1922_S01 

Supporting partners who 
deliver services to support 
people with mental health 
conditions  

Develop volunteer 
opportunities and a 
pathway into volunteering  

Primary Care 
Network 

Active 
Nottinghamshire 

Middle Street 
Resource 
Centre  

Durban House  

Managing Director 

Start January 2022 

End December 2022 

Existing revenue budgets will be used to 
support this work. 

Budgets are contained within the 2022/23 
management fee 

 

BROXTOWE BOROUGH COUNCIL ACTIONS 
 

Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers Responsible/ 
Target Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Review the existing 
Management Agreement 
between Broxtowe 
Borough Council and 
Liberty Leisure Limited 

BBC2022a (New) 

To have an updated 
agreement that accurately 
details the roles and 
responsibilities of 
Broxtowe Borough 
Council and Liberty 
Leisure Ltd in the 
provision of leisure in 
Broxtowe 

BBC Legal 
Officer 

BBC Client Officer  

BBC Deputy Chief 
Executive  

Managing Director  

Currently the direct budget costs associated with 
potentially delivering changes to the existing 
management agreement are not known. Where 
possible these will be contained within existing 
budgets, however, until the extent of the work is 
known, the finance cannot be set out. Areas 
which will be explored further are:  

 Reviewing payment schedules 

 Potential reductions in the Management 
Fee 

 Agreeing a reserve policy 

 Exploring corporation tax liabilities  

 Managing Repairs and Renewals 

 Governance of the Company  

P
age 34



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Description 
(Pentana Code) 

Targeted Outcome Partnership/ 
Procurement 
Arrangement 

Officers Responsible/ 
Target Date  

Budget Implications/ Efficiencies/Other 
comments 

Support Broxtowe 
Borough Council in the 
development of the 
Leisure Facilities Strategy 

LL2225_G01 (New) 

LLL provide operational 
expertise to the council to 
ensure that any new facilities 
have an achievable business 
plan, that design and layout 
will meet customer 
expectation and enable 
efficiencies to be achieved 

Broxtowe 
Borough 
Council  

Managing Director / 
Business Manager  

April 2022 to 
March 2023 

Liberty Leisure Ltd will be required to provide 
its operational expertise to enable the council 
to determine whether the facility mix 
proposed will provide the income required to 
support the development and on-going 
revenue implications of the new facility. 

In addition, LLL will use the facility mix 
proposed to scope out a draft activity 
programme for the new facility, which will 
reflect the diverse needs of the community.   

With Broxtowe Borough 
Council identify alternative 
/additional leisure options 
to be delivered in the north 
of Broxtowe 

LL_FB.2022a (New) 

Continued Borough 
Council provision of 
leisure opportunities in the 
north of the Borough 

Broxtowe 
Borough 
Council 

Primary Care 
Network  

Town Councils 

Durban House 
CIG 

Managing Director  

Start: April 2022  

End: December 2022 

The scope of this action and its financial 
implications are dependent on the outcome 
of negotiations regarding future leisure 
services to be delivered at the Kimberley 
Leisure Centre site.  

Developments from the work on Levelling Up 
applications and Primary Care Network 
developments may also impact on provision 

Replacement gym 
equipment 

BBC2022c (New) 

Provide a scope of the 
equipment required, digital 
capabilities, meet with 
suppliers, site visits, support 
with scoping the details of a 
procurement. Redesign 
available gym space and 
work with the contractor to 
ensure installation is to 
specification and on time 

BBC 
Procurement 
Officer  

Liberty Leisure 
Ltd  

BBC Deputy Chief 
Executive 

June 2023 

The implementation of this action is delayed 
from December 2021.  

£600k is the nominal figure included in the 
council’s capital planning for this action. The 
figure will change due to the financial impact 
of Brexit, the future of Kimberley Leisure 
Centre and the timescale for implementing 
the leisure facility strategy.  

P
age 35



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

 
5. LINK KEY TASKS AND PRIORITIES FOR IMPROVEMENT TO THE FINANCIAL BUDGETS 
 
All known costs, savings and financial efficiencies (actuals and estimates) identified in the key actions above have been (or will be) 
incorporated in the annual and medium-term budget accordingly. 
 

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Implications/ Efficiencies Generated 
2022-23 

Pentana 
Action  
Code 

2021/22 Budget 
£ 

2022/23 Budget 
£ 

Operate alternative leisure provision from 
the existing Kimberley Leisure Centre 
site  

LL2225_K01 
(New) 

Forecast expenditure excluding on costs  

£1.021m 

Forecast operating income 

(£783k) 

Forecast balance £238k  

From April 2022 

Expenditure £855k 

Income (£805k) 

Balance £40k 

 

Grow fitness and swim school 
memberships 

LL2124_G01 Included in the forecasted budgets above Expenditure £33k 

Income (£348k) 

Balance (£315k)  

Implement the exercise referral scheme LL2023_G08 Income and expenditure from ‘pilot’ 
programme included in the forecasted 

budgets above 

Expenditure £18,000 

Income (£20,000) 

Balance (£2,000) 

Implement a first aid training programme  LL2023_G02 Income and expenditure from ‘pilot’ 
programme included in the forecasted 

budgets above 

Expenditure £35,500 

Income (£38k) 

Balance (£2,500) 

P
age 36



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Implications/ Efficiencies Generated 
2022-23 

Pentana 
Action  
Code 

2021/22 Budget 
£ 

2022/23 Budget 
£ 

Base budget excluding developments  - Forecast expenditure excluding Kimberley 
Leisure Centre 

£2.662m 

Forecast income excluding Kimberley 
Leisure Centre (includes Management Fee) 

(£2.926m) 

Forecast balance £264k 

Expenditure budget excluding 
developments above 

£2.954m 

Income budget excluding 
developments above 

£2.687m 

Balance £267k  

TOTALS INCLUDING BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENTS  

- Forecast Expenditure £3.683m 

Forecast Income (£3.709m) 

Forecast Balance (£26k) 

Expenditure £3.895m 

Income (£3.898m) 

Balance (£3k) 

 
 
FORECASTED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY FOR 2023/24 
 

Financial Element 2022/23 2023/24 

Expenditure  £3.895m £3.875m 

Income  (£3.898m) (£3.930m) 

Balance  (£3k) (£55k) 

 
  

P
age 37



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

 

6. SUMMARY OF KEY RISKS 
 

Key Strategic Risk Action to be taken or required to mitigate/minimise the risk or threat 

1. Teckal Company Ongoing strategic operational documents identifying a wide range of actions 
to develop the company  

2. Lack of financial resources As per strategic risk register 

3. Leisure Facilities Strategy As per strategic risk register 

4. Uncertainty of recovery from pandemic / uncertainty about 
the short to medium term of Kimberley Leisure Centre, the 
affects of reduced staffing and attendances on the company’s 
financial position.  

Budgets, cash flow and performance are reviewed regularly. The business 
plan provides a diversity of actions and forward plans to mitigate the risks.  

 
The top five risks (strategic or operational) arising from the key tasks and priorities for improvement  
 

Key Task Risk or Threat to Key Task Covered by an 
existing Strategic 

Risk? 

Action taken/required to mitigate/minimise the 
risk or threat 

Operate alternative leisure 
provision from the existing 
Kimberley Leisure Centre site 
(LL2225_K01) 

An agreement to operate a 
fitness and leisure service at the 
site is not agreed  

TUPE and staffing restructure 

Uncertainty caused by the 
changes reduces the number of 
sales made from the site  

Yes – Risks 4 and 5 
(see below) 

Ongoing meetings with Kimberley School. Staffing 
restructure to retain and upskill existing staff to 
deliver and improved customer service.  

P
age 38



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Key Task Risk or Threat to Key Task Covered by an 
existing Strategic 

Risk? 

Action taken/required to mitigate/minimise the 
risk or threat 

Grow fitness and swim school 
memberships (LL2124_G01) 

Ongoing effects of the 
coronavirus pandemic, reduced 
consumer confidence, possible 
longer term changes in consumer 
behaviour, potential future 
operating restrictions 

Ageing buildings and insufficient 
maintenance budgets  

Changes to operating at 
Kimberley Leisure Centre and 
Chilwell Olympia 

Yes – Risks 4 and 5 
(see below) 

The expenditure needs to be made in order to 
achieve the income and is therefore at risk. 
Risks are mitigated as follows:  

- Diversifying delivery over time to include a 
range of exercise referral options, plans for 
delivering a ‘corporate’ health style 
package, first aid training delivery  

- Reviewing of the proposed new staffing 
structure at Kimberley with the view to 
implement efficiency changes at the other 
sites if appropriate  

- New Leisure Management System 
improving the online booking and joining 
process 

- Additional marketing expenditure can be 
reviewed against income achieved with the 
expenditure potentially reduced 

Implement the exercise referral 
scheme (LL2023_G08) 

An agreement is not reached at 
Kimberley Leisure Centre  

Referrals are less than predicted  

Yes – Risks 4 and 5 
(see below) 

The expenditure needs to be made in order to 
achieve the income and is therefore at risk. 
Risks are mitigated as follows:  

- Temporary contract for new staff member 
- Minimise costs for 2022-23 by utilising 

some existing staff expertise  
- Expectations have been set low for year 

one with income targets to cover 
expenditure  

- Increasing involvement in local NHS 
networks is expanding the network of 
health professionals who can refer 

P
age 39



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
 

Key Task Risk or Threat to Key Task Covered by an 
existing Strategic 

Risk? 

Action taken/required to mitigate/minimise the 
risk or threat 

Implement a first aid training 
programme 

Failure to attract sufficient 
numbers to cover the expenditure  

Staff who are trained to deliver 
leave for other job roles 

Yes – Risks 4 and 5 
(see below) 

The expenditure needs to be made in order to 
achieve the income and is therefore at risk. 
Risks are mitigated as follows:  

- Phasing in staffing expenditure to keep 
first year costs lower 

- Expectations have been set low for year 
one and two with income targets to cover 
expenditure  

- If courses are cancelled due to low 
numbers staff can cover shifts at one of 
the leisure sites  

- Year three is when repeat custom is likely 
to expand uptake due to the need to renew 
qualifications 

- Identifying staff with base skills through 
NPLQ who can be mentored and trained to 
deliverers  

 
Risks as extracted from the Strategic Risk Register as at November 2021: 

Risk 4: Failure of strategic leisure initiatives  
Risk 5: Failure of the Liberty Leisure Limited trading company 

The latest Strategic Risk Register is available in full at https://intranet.broxtowe.gov.uk/finance/risk-management/ 

 

P
age 40

https://intranet.broxtowe.gov.uk/finance/risk-management/


Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

 
 

APPENDIX 2a 
 

LEISURE AND HEALTH PORTFOLIO - REVENUE BUDGETS 
 

Cost Centre Revised 
Estimate 
2021/22 

£ 

Base  
Budget 
2022/23 

£ 

Community Facilities 33,700 37,030 

Chilwell Community Centre 4,410 4,810 

Montrose Court 1,390 1,470 

Grants & Loans To Voluntary Organisation 174,228 173,380 

Hall Park 61,555 68,440 

Leisure Strategy and Management 1,272,395 1,233,600 

 1,547,678 1,518,730 

 
 

Classification 2021/22 
£ 

2022/23 
£ 

Premises 23,310 22,180 

Supplies & Services 292,180 252,310 

Third Party Payments 884,583 886,480 

Corporate Recharges 56,755 70,210 

Capital Charges 302,650 304,850 

Income (11,800) (17,300) 

 1,547,678 1,518,730 

 
 
The changes in the 2022/23 base budget for total net expenditure when compared 
with the 2021/22 revised estimate is primarily a consequence of the following items: 
 

Service Area  Change (£) 

Hall Park – Minor increases across salaries, central support costs 
and depreciation 

6,900 

Leisure Strategy and Management – The 2020/21 revised budget 
includes an amount of £60,000 for consultancy costs on the 
Leisure Facilities Strategy.  This budget will not be required in 
2022/23.  The saving has been partially offset by the agreement 
to increase the fee payable to Liberty Leisure to cover the costs 
of delivering an annual events programme 

(36,750) 

 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Leisure and Health Committee      19 January 2022 

APPENDIX 2B 
LEISURE AND HEALTH CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 

No. Scheme Start Finish 

Estimated 
Total  
Cost 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Net 
Revenue 
Costs in 
2022/23 

Full Year 
Revenue 

Effect  
of (6) 

Net 
Effect  
of (5) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

           
  BRAMCOTE LEISURE CENTRE                   

                     

1. BLC Main Pool Filter Media Replacement  Jul 22 Aug 22               

    Works     15,000 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Actively Seeking Funding     15,000 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

2. BLC Refurbish Fitness Changing Rooms* Jul 22 Aug 22               

   Works   35,000 35,000 0 0 0 0 0 

    Capital Salaries     3,500 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 

   Actively Seeking Funding     38,500 38,500 0 0 0 0 0 

           

3. BLC Replacement of Teaching Pool Filter Dec 22 Dec 22               

    Works     25,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Actively Seeking Funding     25,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

4. BLC Replacement of Flat Roofs* Aug 22 Nov 22               

    Works     120,000 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Capital Salaries   12,000 12,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     132,000 132,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           
 *Dependant on Leisure Strategy          

                     

  Leisure and Health Carried Down      210,500 210,500 0 0 0 0 0 

 

  

P
age 43



Leisure and Health Committee      19 January 2022 

LEISURE AND HEALTH CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

No. Scheme Start Finish 

Estimated 
Total  
Cost 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Net 
Revenue 
Costs in 
2022/23 

Full Year 
Revenue 

Effect  
of (6) 

Net 
Effect  
of (5) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

  Leisure and Health Carried Down      210,500 210,500 0 0 0 0 0 

           
5. BLC Replace Teaching Pool Windows Aug 22 Aug 22               

    Works     30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Capital Salaries   3,000 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     33,000 33,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           
6. BLC Replacement of Main Pool Windows* Aug 22 Sep 22               

    Works     80,000 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Capital Salaries   8,500 8,500 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     93,500 93,500 0 0 0 0 0 

           

7. BLC Replacement  Intruder Alarm May 22 May 22               

    Works     20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

8. BLC Refurbishment of Pool Surrounds* Apr 22 Apr 22               

    Works     80,000 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     80,000 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

9. BLC - Replace High Voltage Transformer Aug 22 Aug 22               

    Works     7,000 7,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Plant   50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     57,000 57,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           
  *Dependant on Leisure Strategy                   

  Leisure and Health Carried Down     494,000 494,000 0 0 0 0 0 

 

P
age 44



Leisure and Health Committee      19 January 2022 

LEISURE AND HEALTH CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

No. Scheme Start Finish 

Estimated 
Total  
Cost 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Net 
Revenue 
Costs in 
2022/23 

Full Year 
Revenue 

Effect  
of (6) 

Net 
Effect  
of (5) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

  Leisure and Health Brought Down     494,000 494,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

10. BLC Replacement Heating Valves Aug 22 Aug 22               

    Works     15,000 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Plant   5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 

   Capital Salaries   2,500 2,500 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     22,500 22,500 0 0 0 0 0 

           
11. Replacement Hot Water Calorifier Aug 22 Aug 22               

    Works     20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 

     Actively Seeking Funding     20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 

           

 CHILWELL OLYMPIA                   

                     

12. COSC Refurbish Male Changing Room Apr 22 Sep 22               

   Works     40,000 40,000 0  0 0 0 0 

   Equipment     32,000 32,000 0  0 0 0 0 

   Plant     7,500 7,500 0  0 0 0 0 

 Actively Seeking Funding     79,500 79,500 0 0 0 0 0 

            

 OTHERS                   

                    

13. Replacement Gym Equipment Jun 23 Jan 24 600,000 0 600,000 0  0  0  0 

        600,000 0 600,000 0 0 0 0 

           

           

  LEISURE AND HEALTH TOTAL     1,216,000 616,000 600,000 0 0 0 0 

           

 

P
age 45



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

LEISURE AND HEALTH CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 
 
Scheme 
Number 

 
1. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Main Pool Filer Media Replacement (£15,000) 
 

The present main pool filter media was installed in 2009 and has reached the 
end of its recommended useful life. Continuing to use the present filter media 
could result in reduced filtering efficiency and poor water quality with resulting 
consequences in terms of health and safety. A significant deterioration in the 
quality of the water in the main pool could require the closure of the facility with 
an association loss of income.  This budget will provide for the installation of a 
new main pool filter media that should increase efficiency and enhance health 
and safety. 

 
2. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Refurbishment of Fitness Gym Changing Rooms 
 (£38,500) 
 
 The male and female changing rooms were designed and built over thirty years 

ago. The facilities do not meet the current levels of demand as they are now 
required to provide changing and showering facilities for either the fitness suite 
or one of the three fitness studios. This budget would provide additional 
changing facilities by utilising the space of the existing male and female 
changing rooms to create a mixed sex area with changing cubicles, showers 
and toilet facilities.   

 
3. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement of Teaching Pool Filter (£25,000) 
  
 The previous teaching pool filter was replaced over fifteen years ago and the 

present filter is being repaired on a regular basis. There is a requirement to 
replace the present filler with a more efficient model before a total failure is 
encountered.  This budget will provide for the replacement of the present 
teaching pool filter before it deteriorates further. 

 
4. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement of Flat Roofs (£132,000) 
 
 This budget is required because during wet weather, numerous leaks appear, 

either as dripping water or through damage to ceiling tiles. Should this not be 
addressed then there is a significant possibility that wet weather may require 
the closure of facilities and result in a reduction in the service provided to 
customers and the level of income received.   

 
5. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement of Teaching Pool Windows (£33,000) 
 

The bottoms of these frames are rotten and worse than the Main Pool ones. 
This budget would enable these to be replaced and their hardwood construction 
would ensure they last for some years.  

   
  

Page 46



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
6. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement of Main Pool Windows (£93,500) 
 

A number of window frames are showing signs of decay. This budget would 
enable these to be replaced and their hardwood construction would ensure they 
last for some years.    

 
7. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement Intruder Alarm ( £20,000) 
 
 The current system is operational however servicing of the main control board 

is becoming increasingly difficult. This budget will enable the system to be 
replaced. 

 
8. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Refurbishment of Pool Surrounds (£80,000) 
 

The tiled surrounds of both swimming pools have deteriorated significantly 
since being laid around 50 years ago and there are a number of areas that 
require remedial work.  
 
This budget would enable a non-slip coating specifically designed for wet 
surfaces to be applied to the existing tiled surface. This would both improve the 
general appearance of the facility and allow for easy maintenance. 

 
9. Bramcote Leisure Centre- Replacement of High Voltage Transformer (£57,000) 
 
 The transformer converts the high voltage electricity supply into a voltage 

suitable for consumption on the leisure centre site. It has been in use for 
approximately fifty years and there is therefore a strong risk of failure. If the 
transformer were to fail then the leisure centre would not be able to open due to 
the lack of power. A temporary generator would cost around £6,000 per month. 
This budget therefore provides for the replacement of the present model with a 
modern, efficient model.   

 
10. Bramcote Leisure Centre - Replacement Heating Valves (£22,500) 
 

Various heating valves require replacement due to either leaking or not 
operating as intended. These include valves that form part of the heating to the 
main pool hall. Failure to replace the valves would mean that the necessary 
environmental controls at the centre could not be maintained and would impact 
upon the service received by customers.   
 
This budget would allow these heating valves to be replaced. Due to the 
legislative requirements of managing asbestos, this work will be undertaken by 
specialist operatives. 

  

Page 47



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

 
11. Bramcote Leisure Centre – Replacement Hot Water Calorifier (£20,000) 
 

The hot water calorifier generates and stores domestic hot water for the taps 
and showers. This has been in place since Bramcote Leisure Centre was built 
over 50 years ago. The unit is clad in two inches of insulation with an aluminium 
jacket. Significant signs of corrosion are present on the aluminium jacket which 
indicate that water is seeping from the unit along with the risk that it may fail at 
some future date. 
 
This budget would allow for the replacement of the hot water calorifier with an 
efficient, modern unit and reduce the risk of failure and resulting implications 
upon attendances and income.  

 
12. Chilwell Olympia – Refurbishment of Male Changing Room (£79,500) 
 

The male changing rooms at Chilwell Olympia are the original facilities from 
when the building was constructed over 40 years. Concerns have been raised 
by customers about the poor condition of the male changing rooms and repairs 
to the heating pipework have indicated that further work is necessary due to the 
old tile system on the floor no longer being available. 
 
This budget is intended to provide a modern and safe environment for 
customers, encourage attendance and ensure a good working relationship with 
Chilwell School. The proposed refurbishment would see the replacement of the 
flooring, plumbing, electrics, showers and furniture and avoid the cost of 
potentially expensive future repairs.  

 

Page 48



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

Report of the Chief Executive 
 

DEMENTIA ACTION PLAN  
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
To advise Committee of the new Dementia Action Plan.  

 
2. Detail 
 

According to NHS data it is estimated that in June 2020 850,000 people were 
living with dementia in the UK and although this estimate has not increased 
since 2014. They estimate the number of people with dementia will grow to 
over 1 million by 2025.  

 
Approximately 13,000 people have been diagnosed with dementia in 
Nottinghamshire.  

 
It is estimated that 1 in 14 people over the age of 65 have dementia, and the 
condition affects 1 in 6 people over 80. As age is the biggest risk factor for 
dementia, increasing life expectancy is the driving force behind any projected 
rise. 

 
While Broxtowe Borough Council isn’t a provider of social or health care 
services, there are actions the authority can take which can play an important 
role in ensuring that people living with dementia and their families and carers, 
live happier, healthier and more independent lives.  

 
The plan attached at the appendix sets out the actions the authority intends to 
undertake as part of its commitment to being a Dementia Friendly Council. 

 

Recommendation 
Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the new Dementia Action Plan, be 
approved. 

 
Background papers 
Nil. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 APPENDIX 

 
DEMENTIA 

1 January 2022 TO 31 December 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

2 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

Due Date UPDATE 

Promote National 
Dementia Awareness 
Week 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

Annually in May  
 
 

Use of social media, newsletters, Broxtowe Partnership 
distribution lists 

Produce an article for 
Broxtowe Matters  

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

Annually October 2021 edition has a list of all dementia friendly 
activities across Broxtowe and promotion of Dementia 
Friends 

Use our social media 
platforms to raise 
awareness of dementia 
friendly initiatives, 
information and advice 

Communities 
Officer (Health) / 
Communications 
and Marketing 
Officer 

As required – December 
2023 

May each year for the awareness week and others as 
they arise from the Broxtowe Partnership or 
Alzheimer’s Society 

Deliver Dementia Friends 
Information Sessions to 
community, voluntary 
organisations and 
businesses across 
Broxtowe; increasing the 
number of Dementia 
Friends in Broxtowe. 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

On-going –December 
2023 
 
 

Future restrictions and Communities response to the 
pandemic may impact delivery. (face to face sessions 
to community groups restarted November 2021) 
 
Nov 21 = 10 Sessions 

Embed / Create link on 
Broxtowe Learning Zone 
for staff to become a 
dementia friend as part of 
the BLZ dementia training 
course 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

April 2022 Discussions with Alzheimer’s Society for numbers to 
be recorded on the Dementia Friends Dashboard to 
enable BBC to record numbers towards our annual 
target. 

P
age 52



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

3 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

Due Date UPDATE 

Raise awareness of BLZ e-
learning to help employees 
become more aware of the 
needs of people living with 
dementia 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

Annually  

Promote Dementia 
Champions Training 
 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

At each information 
session 

Raise awareness of Dementia Champion training - 
increase the number of champions to  increase 
capacity for information sessions to be delivered 
across Broxtowe 

Older Persons' Week. 
Explore the possibility to 
hold relevant activities, to 
include people living with 
Dementia 

Housing 
Engagement 
Manager 

October 2022 & 2023  

Explore creating a leisure 
programmes that can 
reflect an inclusive 
approach towards people 
living with Dementia and 
their carers 

Communities 
Officer (Health) / 
LLeisure  
 
 

December 2023  

Raise awareness of the 
Discretionary Dementia 
Grant from the Disabilities 
Facilities Grants fund for 
adaptations / assistive 
technology to make homes 
dementia friendly 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2023 At  information sessions 

P
age 53



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

4 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

Due Date UPDATE 

Explore holding a 
community information 
event. 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2023  

Explore building more 
dementia friendly 
bungalows 

Head of Asset 
Management  
and 
Development(tbc) 

December 2023  

New dementia-friendly 
signage on ground floor of 
council offices will be 
considered as part of the 
New Ways of Working 
Project. 

Head of Asset 
Management and 
Development tbc) 

December 2023 Action carried over from previous plan due to COVID-
19 related work 

Encourage and promote 
activities evidence 
suggests are preventative 
factors 
(smoking cessation, 
healthy weight, physical 
activity) 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2023 New integrated wellbeing service launched 1 April 
2020 - will signpost this support at information 
sessions. 
Your Health Your Way 

Explore creating a pilot 
project working in 
partnership with The Studio 

Chief Executive December 2022 Action carried over from previous plan due to COVID-
19 related work(tbc)  

Promote carers roadshows  
 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

Annually Roadshows have been virtual during pandemic 

P
age 54



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

5 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

Due Date UPDATE 

Attend Dementia Action 
Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire Network 
meetings and support 
actions 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2023  

New Mayor to train as a 
dementia friend 
 

Communications 
and Marketing 
Officer 
Mayor 

Annually  

Refresh our Dementia 
webpage 

Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2022  

Explore mandatory 
Dementia Friend training 
as part of the induction with 
new starters. 

HR Manager (tbc) December 2022 
 

Action carried over from previous plan due to COVID-
19 related work 

Promote awareness and 
take up of Carer’s 
allowance and attendance 
allowance entitlement 

Revenues and 
Benefits Manager 
Communities 
Officer (Health) 

December 2023  

P
age 55



 

Leisure and Health Committee             19 January 2022  

6 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

Due Date UPDATE 

Refresh HR policies when 
appropriate: The Council is 
committed to ensuring that 
its staff are treated with 
dignity and respect at work. 
Consideration will be given 
to carers through 
agreement to flexible 
working requests in 
accordance with the 2014 
Flexible Working 
Regulations and the ACAS 
Code of Practice. 

HR Manager Reactive until December 
2023 

 

 

P
age 56



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 

Report of the Chief Executive  
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ACTION PLAN 

1. Purpose of report 

To advise Committee of the draft Children and Young People Action Plan.  

2. Detail 

The Children and Young People Task Group is a sub-group of the Broxtowe 

Borough Partnership.  

The action plan will be approved by the Children and Young People Task Group 
at their next meeting following delays in the groups action planning cycle caused 
by the vacancy in the lead Communities Officer post and their immediate 
deployment of this resource to delivering the Holiday Activities and Food 
Winterfest programme.  
 
The aim of the group is “To achieve better outcomes for children, young people 

and families through locality-level planning and delivery of partnership activities.” 

The group is made up of representatives of a number of partner agencies. 

Approximately 20 agencies regularly attend the meetings which are usually held 

three times a year. However, many more organisations are kept up to date on 

the work of the group by way of regular e-mail notifications.  

The new draft Children and Young People Action Plan is attached within the 

appendix.  

Recommendation 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the draft Children and Young People 
Action Plan 2022-2024 be approved. 

Background papers 

Nil 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6.



This page is intentionally left blank



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 APPENDIX 

 
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 

DRAFT ACTION PLAN 
JANUARY 2022 TO JANUARY 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 59



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

2 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

PRIORITY: PROVIDE C&YP WITH THE EARLY HELP AND SUPPORT THEY NEED 

 
Plan one Task Group 
meeting around a multi-
agency meeting to discuss 
any emerging issues in the 
borough’s 7 secondary 
schools 
 

 
BBC/NCC 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 
TECT Team  
Task Group 
membership 

 

 
Plan and deliver 1 x White 
Ribbon Campaign event 

 
BBC/BWP 

 
BBC DA & Private 
Sector Co-ordinator 
BWP Partnership 
Officer 
 

 

 
Refer cases into the High 
Risk Youth Violence and 
Exploitation Panel and 
Child Criminal Exploitation 
Strategy meetings. Attend 
panel meetings to develop 
action plans to manage risk 
to the public and 
individuals 
 

 
Communities 

 
Broxtowe Borough 
Council Chief 
Communities Officer 

 

P
age 60



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

3 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Hold Neighbourhood 
Safeguarding and 
Disruption Meetings where 
appropriate to formulate 
multi agency plans around 
individuals in response to 
incidents, intelligence and 
concerning behaviour 
 

 
Police / 
Communities 

 
Local Area 
Commander / Chief 
Communities Officer 

 

PRIORITY: PROVIDE A SAFE ENVIRONMENT  

 
Review any issues of 
violence and knife crime at 
the Parks and Green 
Spaces in the Borough. 
Work with Communities 
Team and Police if any 
areas are identified 
 

 
Parks Team/Police 
Communities  Team 

 
Parks and Green 
Spaces Manager and 
Chief Communities 
Officer 

 

P
age 61



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

4 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Deliver Broxtowe’s element 
of the Violence Reduction 
Units countywide project to 
Install 4 x bleed kits across 
the borough (1 in each 
town centre)  
 

 
Communities / 
Neighbourhoods 
and Prosperity 

 
Nottinghamshire 
County Council 
Community Safety 
Team 
NHS Training Team 
Broxtowe Borough 
Council Chief 
Communities Officer / 
Broxtowe Borough 
Council Business 
Growth Manager 
 

 

PRIORITY: CHILD POVERTY 

 
Holiday Activities and Food 
poverty project 

 
BBC / NCC / 
Partners 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 
 

  
Where a decision is made by the DoE to continue to 
run this during every school holiday including half 
terms for the next 3 years this may be the only project 
within the plan the Communities Officer has the 
capacity to deliver  
 

PRIORITY: TARGETED WORK WITH YOUNG PEOPLE 

P
age 62



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

5 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Deliver Home Street Home 
project to George Spencer 
Academy and The 
Bramcote School 
 

 
Broxtowe Youth 
Homelessness 

 
Project Manager 

 

 
Plan and deliver Domestic 
Abuse assembly to a 
Secondary School  

 
BBC/Equation 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 
Equation Head of 
Service for C&YP 
 

 

 
Support local groups with 
sports activities and mental 
health support 
 

 
Active Notts 

 
Place Lead 
 

 

 
Work with a sports club to 
promote issues around 
Domestic Abuse, Healthy 
Relationships and the 
White Ribbon Campaign. 
 

 
BWP 
BBC 

 
BWP Partnership 
Officer  
BBC Communities 
Officer 

 

P
age 63



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

6 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Chayah Group to develop a 
short video highlighting the 
full consequences of 
violence and knife crime 
and distribute to 6 x 
secondary schools  
 

 
Communities Team 
Communications 
Team 
Cllr R Macrae 
CHAYAH 
  

 
Chief Communities 
Officer 

 
 
TBC 

 
Request programme of Anti 
Knife Crime Education to 
students in secondary 
schools targeted at most 
vulnerable groups 
 

 
Nottinghamshire 
County Council 
TECT Team and 
Police Schools 
Liaison Officer 
(currently vacant)  
 

 
Communities Officer 

 

PRIORITY: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 

 
Plan and deliver specific 
training for teaching staff in 
selected primary schools 
on the Great Connections 
project 
 

 
BBC/Equation 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 
Equation Head of 
Service for C&YP 

 

P
age 64



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

7 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Identify training needs for 
partners, front line workers 
and elected members on 

 Modern Slavery 

 County Lines 

 Suicide Prevention 
(Harmless) 
 

 
BBC 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 

 

 
Arrange a presentation for 
Task Group to all partners 
on NCC Small Steps 
programme 
 

 
BBC 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 

 

 
Circulate to all partner’s 
relevant information about 
current training/workshops 
etc to keep them updated 
on new initiatives 
 

 
BBC 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 

 

PRIORITY: EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

P
age 65



Leisure and Health Committee        19 January 2022 
 

8 
 

ACTION / DESCRIPTION DEPT/ AGENCY LEAD OFFICER 
(Title) 

UPDATE 

 
Ensure sufficient 
consideration is given to 
opportunities available to 
young people within the 
Employment and Skills 
Group including 
opportunities in education, 
employment, training, 
apprenticeships etc 
 

 
NCC / BBC 

 
BBC Communities 
Officer 
NCC Stakeholder 
Manager (Building 
Better Opportunities) 
 

 

 

. 

P
age 66



Leisure and Health Committee                                                       19 January 2022 

 

Report of the Chief Executive 
 

FOOD CLUBS UPDATE 

1. Purpose of report  

To advise the Committee on the progress of the development of three Food Clubs 
in the Borough. 

2. Detail 

Nottinghamshire County Council is currently working with Family Action to deliver 
30 Food Clubs across Nottinghamshire by the end of the next financial year 
(March 2022) this would cover the whole county and be predominantly hosted 
within the County Council’s children’s centres.  
 
In Broxtowe the plan is for there to be three Food Clubs to be located at:  
 

 Eastwood Children’s Centre, Chewton Street, Eastwood opened 22 July 2021 
 

 Beeston North Children’s Centre, Alderman Close, Beeston opened 9 July 
2021 

 

 Chilwell Children’s Centre, Great Hoggett Drive, Chilwell due to open before the 
end of March 2022.  

 
The opening of Chilwell FOOD Club has been delayed due to capacity issues at 
Chilwell Children’s Centre.  
 
Data for the Food Clubs is contained in the appendix.  
 

Recommendation 
Committee is asked to NOTE the update report on the progression of the 
development of Food Clubs.  

 
Background papers 
Nil. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 7.



This page is intentionally left blank



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

APPENDIX 
Aims 

 Give regular access to a sustainable supply of food to people at risk of food 
insecurity. 

 Encourage families to access local support services and signposted to other 
agencies. 

 Increase disposable income for local families to improve life chances and 
wellbeing. 

 Reduce the amount of food being sent to landfill in the UK by utilizing surplus 
food.  

 
Membership  

• Each family pays £1 per year membership  
• £3.50 each week for food 
• Each Club has a limit of 50 members  
• Families are only eligible for 1 year’s membership to maximise the number of 

families who are able to benefit from scheme. 
 
Clubs 

• Clubs are delivered predominately from Children’s Centres  
• Volunteers are trained (two-hour session)  
• FARE Share deliver food the day before club  
• Families book a time slot to collect food 
• Payment is taken by a volunteer (£3.50 cash or card) on collection 
• Families collect a range of fresh, frozen and ambient produce (approx. value 

£15.00)  
• Families check they are happy with food and signs to accept content and 

allergy guidelines.  
 
FARE Share 

• FARE Share is the UK’s national network of charitable food redistributors, 
made up of 18 independent organisations. Together, they take good quality 
surplus food from right across the food industry and get it to almost 11,000 
frontline charities and community groups. 

 
DATA: Eastwood 
 

WEEK FAMILIES 

22/07/2021 6 

29/07/2021 21 

05/08/2021 21 

12/08/2021 21 

19/08/2021 19 

26/08/2021 15 

02/09/2021 21 

09/09/2121 27 

16/09/2021 21 

23/09/2021  17 

30/09/2021 21 

Page 69



Leisure and Health Committee   19 January 2022 

WEEK FAMILIES 

07/10/2021 24 

14/10/2021 23 

21/10/2021 14 

28/10/2021 16 

04/11/2021 18 

11/11/2021 16 

18/11/2021 16 

 
DATA: Beeston 

WEEK FAMILIES 

09/11/2021 20 

16/11/2021 32 

23/11/2021 33 
 
 
 

Page 70



Leisure and Health Committee  19 January 2022 
    

Report of the Managing Director, Liberty Leisure Limited 
 

PLAY DAYS 2022 
 

1. Purpose of report 
 

To provide the Leisure and Health Committee with an update regarding the play 
day options as requested.   

  
2. Background 
 
 At the Leisure and Health Committee on 24 November 2021 Members asked for 

additional information on play days following a resolution to hold two play days 
that were detailed in the options presented. 

 
 In addition to the resolution made on 24 November 2021 further consideration 

will be given to providing two additional play days, as requested by Members, 
one in the north and one in the south of the Borough.  

  
3. Financial implications  
 

Additional costs of providing the additional play days will be reviewed by the 
Council and Liberty Leisure Limited. If necessary, the Chief Executives 
delegated powers could be used if any finances were required outside of the 
committee programme.  

 

Recommendation 
 
The Committee is asked to NOTE the report  

 
Background papers 
Nil 
 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. MINUTES
	4. BUSINESS PLANS AND FINANCIAL ESTIMATES 2022/23 - 2024/25
	5a - Revenue Summary 2022-23 - Leisure and  Health
	5b - Capital Programme - Leisure and Health

	5. DEMENTIA ACTION PLAN
	6.1 Dementia Action Plan 2022 -2024

	6. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ACTION PLAN
	7.1 C&YP Plan 22-24

	7. FOOD CLUBS UPDATE
	8.1 Food clubs - Appendix 1

	8. PLAY DAYS 2022

